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MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 
 
TO: Mayor; Fayetteville City Council 
 
THRU: Susan Norton, Chief of Staff 
 Jonathan Curth, Development Services Director 
 Jessie Masters, Development Review Manager 
 
FROM:  Gretchen Harrison, Planner 
 
DATE: September 2, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  RZN-2022-0032: Rezone (115 & 121 S. UNIVERSITY AVE./ROBSON, 522): 

Submitted by MARCIA ROBSON for property located at 115 & 121 S. 
UNIVERSITY AVE. in WARD 2. The property is zoned RMF-40, RESIDENTIAL 
MULTI-FAMILY, 40 UNITS PER ACRE and contains approximately 0.60 acres. 
The request is to rezone the property to MSC, MAIN STREET CENTER. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
City Planning staff recommend denial of a request to rezone the subject property as described 
and shown in the attached Exhibits ‘A’ and ‘B’. The Planning Commission recommend approval 
to rezone the subject property to DG, Downtown General. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The subject property is located near downtown Fayetteville approximately 800 feet south of West 
Center Street on the west side of South University Avenue. The property contains two parcels 
totaling 0.60 acres and three single-family dwellings which were built between 1936 and 1950. A 
slope in excess of 15% is present on site, though no portion of the property is located within the 
Hillside/Hilltop Overlay District. 
 
Request: The request is to rezone the property from RMF-40, Residential Multi-Family, 40 Units 
per Acre to MSC, Main Street/Center. The applicant has stated that rezoning the property to MSC 
would allow them to split the existing dwelling units onto individual lots, and it would provide 
greater flexibility in land uses. 
 
Public Comment: Staff received one phone call from a neighbor who expressed their support for 
the applicant’s request and inquired about rezoning their property to MSC as well. 
 
Land Use Compatibility: Staff finds the proposed zoning to be somewhat compatible with 
surrounding land uses. MSC, Main Street/Center is a zoning district that is intended to be more 
spatially compact than other districts such as DG or NC, with multi-story buildings that 
accommodate a mix of land uses such as apartments or offices above shops. The existing RMF-
40 zoning district is primarily intended to protect existing high-density multi-family development 
and to encourage additional development of that type where desirable. The subject property is 
located mid-block along an unimproved street with alley access and is surrounded by a variety of 
single- and multi-family residences. Since the subject property is situated in a neighborhood that 
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has an established low-density residential character, staff finds that a rezoning to MSC, which 
would allow for increased density and nonresidential uses, may not be appropriate at this time. 
The current RMF-40 zoning district is fairly permissive as it allows up to 24 dwelling units on the 
property and building heights of up to five stories, though only residential land uses are allowed 
by right. By comparison, the MSC zoning district has no density limitation and allows building 
heights of up to seven stories as well as a variety of nonresidential and commercial land uses 
such as restaurants, retail, and auto repair shops. While both zoning districts allow for 
development that is out of scale with the surrounding neighborhood, staff finds that a rezoning 
would not be suitable in this instance since it would allow for a variety of nonresidential land uses 
that are not directly compatible with the area. 
 
However, the applicant is pursuing a rezoning to MSC in order to have the reduced setbacks and 
lot width necessary to split their property so that each house can be on an individual lot. Currently, 
the RMF-40 zoning district requires a minimum lot width of 30 feet for single-family dwellings and 
a side setback of five feet. The proposed MSC zoning district requires a minimum lot width of 18 
feet for single-family dwellings and has no side setback. Staff finds that there are alternatives 
available to the applicant that would allow them to subdivide their property as desired without 
needing to rezone to MSC. Other zoning districts such as RI-U and DG would allow for reduced 
lot widths, and DG, which is less permissive in terms of land use, has the same setback 
regulations as MSC. Creating a tandem lot is another option available to the applicant. 
 
Land Use Plan Analysis: Staff finds the proposed zoning to be somewhat inconsistent with the 
City’s land use planning objectives, principles, and policies. While the property has a high infill 
score of 12 and is near public services, the existing RMF-40 zoning district would allow for 
appropriate residential infill. A rezoning to MSC has the potential to introduce nonresidential uses 
mid-block along an unimproved street, University Avenue, which is set to become a dead-end 
with the closure of the railroad crossing to the south. Thus, any new development is not likely to 
result in increased connectivity. 
 
CITY PLAN 2040 INFILL MATRIX: City Plan 2040’s Infill Matrix indicates a score of 12 for this 
site. The following elements of the matrix contribute to the score: 

• 4 Minute Fire Response (Station #1, 303 W. Center St.) 

• Near Sewer Main (8” main, South University Avenue) 

• Near Water Main (6” main, East Spring Street) 

• Near Grocery Store (Walmart Neighborhood Market) 

• Near Public School (Fayetteville High School) 

• Near U of A Main Campus 

• Near City Park (Fay Jones Woods) 

• Near Paved Trail (Frisco Trail) 

• Near ORT Bus Stop (Route 20) 

• Near Razorback Transit (Route 13) 

• Appropriate Future Land Use (City Neighborhood Area) 

• Sufficient Intersection Density (Greater than 140 intersections/square mile) 
 
DISCUSSION: 
At the August 22, 2022 Planning Commission meeting, a vote of 6-1-0 forwarded this request to 
City Council with a recommendation to rezone the property to DG, Downtown General. 
Commissioner Johnson made the motion and Commissioner McGetrick seconded.  While 
commissioners expressed few concerns about the applicant’s request to rezone to MSC, they 
voted to forward the request with a recommendation to rezone to DG since that zoning district is 
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less permissive in terms of land use and still provides the lot width and setbacks desired by the 
applicant. Commissioner Garlock, voting in opposition, expressed concerns about MSC and DG 
not having a residential density limitation. No public comment was offered at the meeting. 
 
BUDGET/STAFF IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Exhibit A  

• Exhibit B  

• Planning Commission Staff Report 
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EXHIBIT ‘B’ 

 

 

REZONE DESCRIPTION: 

16 - 16 - 30 

LOT 21 IN BLOCK 4 OF PUTMAN’S ADDITION, SUBDIVISION: 07320 NE ¼ OF THE SW ¼ OF SECTION 16 

AND 

LOT 20 AND THE N ½ OF LOT 19 IN BLOCK 4 OF PUTMAN’S ADDITION 

AND 

THE W ½ OF THE S ½ OF LOT 19 BLOCK 4 OF PUTMAN’S ADDITION 


